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Five Years Financial Summary
T EMBEHE

YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE

BEARA=THLFE

Results E¥ 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
—EBBAE —TT)N\F —TTLF —TTNF —TTRHRF

Turnover L

(RMB’000) (AR#F 1) 287,780 152,826 145,059 115,581 187,965
(Loss) profit attributable  # x5 45 A fE(h

to equity holders of the (/&1 ) & Fl

Company (RMB’000) (ARMEFIT) (18,547) (112,622 7,864 (247,520) (19,105)
(Loss) earnings per share & A% (E518 ) % F

(RMB cents) (AREEAM)
— Basic . i (4.33) (26.41) 2.25 (70.72) (5.46)
— Diluted — B85 N/AFEH NATEB 222 N/ATEA NATER
AT 30 JUNE BR-<A=+H
Assets and liabilites BERE&E 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

“BEAE —TT)\F —ZTTLF —TTRF —_TEHF

Total assets BELE

(RMB’000) (ANREBFT) 247,020 279,400 329,402 183,910 331,617
Total liabilities BERTE

(RMB’000) (AR FIT) (235,294)  (248,565) (212,283) (154,626) (157,949)
Net asset value BEFE

(RMB’000) (ANREBFT) 11,726 30,835 117,119 20,284 173,668
Net asset value per share &R & &E % E

(RMB cents) (AR 2.73 7.19 33.47 8.37 49.62
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B IR & wm Mo AT

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 30 June 2009, the Group achieved a turnover
of approximately RMB287,780,000 (2008: approximately
RMB152,826,000) which represented an increase of
approximately 88.31% compared to the last corresponding year.
The increase in turnover is mainly attributable to the trading of
electronic components by one of the Group’s Hong Kong
subsidiaries.

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company was
approximately RMB18,547,000 (2008: approximately
RMB112,622,000 which included an amount of approximately
RMB60,700,000 set aside in respect of the alleged guarantee
which are said to be issued by a PRC subsidiary of the Company).

For the debt-restructuring proposal on approximately
RMB135,434,000, we are continuing our negotiations with the
Bank of China, Shenzhen branch.

At present, the Hong Kong economy is recovering from the global
economic tsunami of last year. The economic stimulus packages
and measures taken by the world governments gradually took
effect and the financial and investment climate has vastly
improved. In the first half of 2009, the impacts of the financial
crisis on the global economy lingered. Under the weakening
export, a series of economic stimulus measures launched by the
PRC government in the fourth quarter of last year have begun to
take effect, boosting the economy of the country in the first half of
the year. The strong supportive policies of the PRC government
have driven consumer spending and consumption demand in the
PRC, and in turn presented room for development of various
industries.

During the year ended 30 June 2009, the consumer electronics
products market in Asia, especially the PRC, has recovered
rapidly which lead to a significant growth in our electronic
components and related products trading business. Despite an
increase in turnover of the Group for the year ended 30 June
2009, the Group’s gross profit margin has decreased as trading
in electronic components is very competitive with a relatively high
cost of sales, thus resulting in lower profit margins as compared
to the same period last year. As compared to the same period
last year, 95.17% of the Group’s turnover was generated by
trading in mobile phones, machines of vertical impregnating line
and the natural resources and industrial equipments which
commanded a higher gross margin.

f1 %5 Bl B

HE-_ZEZANFNA=Z+tHLEFE AEEHNE
¥ ARE287,780,0000t (ZEZNFE : HHA
R #152,826,0007T ) + kb 2= F [A Hi1Z & £988.31% °
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BRAANETFTEHES -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B IR & wm Mo AT

In May 2009, Hill Light Investments Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the conditional sale and
purchase agreement with Ms. Wong Sio Leng pursuant to which
Hill Light has conditionally agreed to acquire for and Ms. Wong
conditionally agreed to dispose of the sale shares, being the entire
issued capital of the Ocean Vast Corporation Limited, at a total
fair value consideration of RMB178,579,000. The project was
completed in August 2009.

In August 2009, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (as supplemented by the supplemental agreement
dated 20 August 2009) with Mr. Ho Man Hung pursuant to which
the Company has conditionally agreed to acquire for and Mr. Ho
has conditionally agreed to dispose of the sale shares, being the
entire issued capital of Boom Lotus Holdings Limited, a company
established in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability and is
wholly-owned by Mr. Ho, at a total consideration of
HK$590,000,000.

Further details of the above acquisitions are set out in the sections
“SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT AND MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES” and “EVENTS
AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE AND FUTURE PLANS FOR
MATERIAL INVESTMENTS” below.

As the series of economic stimulus measures launched by the
PRC government in the fourth quarter of last year have begun to
take effect, the Group is optimistic about the property investment
business in the PRC and has been redeploying resources to the
property investment business. In view of the economic prospect
of Zhuhai, it is the intention of the Company to continue to look
for projects for property development and investment in Zhuhai.
The above acquisitions are expected to contribute revenue to the
Group from 2010.

The Quaypoint Corporation Limited Annual Report 2009
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OPERATIONS REVIEW

(@)

Technology (formerly classified under
Project and Technical Services segment)

The segment of automation products has experienced a
slow down due to adverse market conditions. As a result,
turnover during this period came almost to a standstill.
Though the automation and mobile handset markets are
showing signs of recovery, management is taking a
cautious approach and continue to critically review whether
potential projects and business opportunities would benefit
the Group or not.

Trading

The Group’s trading business comprises of distribution of
imported automation products, trading of mineral resources
such as iron ore, electronic related components and mobile
phone modules. The Group noted there was a change of
demand in the markets of infrastructural and natural
resources, also with reference to the research reports of
international markets, the Group will concentrate its
resources to the mobile modules trading business in the
short run.

Property investment

The investment properties comprise six units of office
premises in Hong Kong with total saleable areas of
approximately 4,582 sq. ft. and the R & D Centre in
Shenzhen with total floor area of approximately 15,084 sq.
meters.

After the year-end the Group acquired two property
projects in Zhuhai, PRC. For further details of the above
acquisitions please refer the sections “SIGNIFICANT
INVESTMENT AND MATERIAL ACQUISTIONS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES” and
“EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE AND
FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS” below.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 30 June 2009, the total assets of the Group were
approximately RMB247,020,000, a decrease by approximately
11.59% as compared to 30 June 2008. As at 30 June 2009, the
Group had total borrowings of approximately RMB118,757,000
(2008: RMB125,112,000), approximately RMB74,734,000 of
which is owed to Bank of China, Shenzhen branch. Although a
judgment was made in favour of the bank by the Shenzhen
Arbitration Commission, the bank has principally agreed not to
demand immediate full repayment from the Group and we have
numbers of discussions for the restructuring of the outstanding
debts into a loan secured against the R&D Centre. The Company
is in the process of negotiation for the restructuring of the
guarantee provision of RMB60,700,000 and short-term bank loan
of approximately RMB74,734,000 with the bank. However, the
terms and repayment schedules have not yet been finalised. It is
expected that both the Company and the bank target to finalise
the restructure proposal (the “Restructuring Proposal”) before the
end of December 2009.

Taking into account of the broadening of revenue base, the
finalisation of the Restructuring Proposal, the ability of the
Company to raise additional funds, and the Company’s right to
defend the questionable claim, the Directors are confident that the
Group has sufficient resources to meet in full its financial
obligations as they fall due in the foreseeable future.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The issued ordinary share capital of the Company as at 30 June
2009 was HK$42,918,000 divided into 429,180,000 shares of
HK$0.10 each (2008: HK$42,868,000 divided into 428,680,000
shares of HK$0.10 each). As at 30 June 2009, the issued
convertible redeemable preference share capital was
HK$35,000,000 divided into 350,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each
(2008: HK$35,000,000 divided into 350,000,000 shares of HK$0.10
each) and the convertible redeemable preference A share capital
was HK$11,000,000 divided into 110,000,000 shares of HK$0.10
each (2008: HK$11,000,000 divided into 110,000,000 shares of
HK$0.10 each). As at 30 June 2009, none of the convertible
redeemable preference shares and convertible redeemable
preference A shares were converted into ordinary shares.

As at 30 June 2009, the Group’s bank borrowings of
approximately RMB86,734,000 on a short-term basis and was
mainly in Renminbi. Out of such borrowings, the loan of
approximately RMB74,734,000 bears fixed interest rate whilst the
loan of approximately RMB12,000,000 bears interest at prevailing
market rates. There are no known seasonal factors in our
borrowing profiles.

The Quaypoint Corporation Limited Annual Report 2009
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FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The Group mainly earns revenues and incurs costs in Renminbi,
United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars. The Group’s
monetary assets and liabilities are denominated in Renminbi,
United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars. Although the
exchange rates of United States dollars and Renminbi against
Hong Kong dollars were relatively unstable during the year under
review, since the Group has no financial instrument for hedging
purposes, treasury and funding policies, therefore the Group’s
exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates is considered minimal.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 30 June 2009, the Group’s certain investment properties,
property, plant and equipment, prepaid lease payments and time
deposits with an aggregate net carrying value of approximately
RMB73,905,000 were pledged to banks for securing revolving
loans and general banking facilities granted to the Group (2008:
approximately RMB77,654,000).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT AND
MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATE
COMPANIES

On 19 May 2009, Hill Light Investments Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (“Hill Light”), entered into the
conditional sale and purchase agreement with Ms. Wong Sio
Leng (“Ms. Wong”) pursuant to which Hill Light has conditionally
agreed to acquire for and Ms. Wong conditionally agreed to
dispose of the sale shares, being the entire issued capital of the
Ocean Vast Corporation Limited (“Ocean Vast”), at a total fair
value consideration of RMB178,600,000 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$203,000,000) (the “Ocean Vast Acquisition”).

Upon Completion, Hill Light has become the sole shareholder of
Ocean Vast and therefore be effectively interested in 60% equity
interest in the BELEFRESBESFEBMR AR (Zhuhai Special
Economic Zone Hegiang Industrial Company Limited*) (“Project
Company”), a company established in the PRC with limited liability
and is owned as to 60% by the PRC Company and 40% by an
independent third party.

* The English name is for identification purpose only
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The only major asset of the Project Company is the project land.
The project land is situated at South of Yuehai West Road,
Gongbei, Zhuhai City, Guangdong Province, the PRC and
occupies approximately 11,878.40 square meters with a planned
gross floor area of 36,375.96 square meters. The project land will
be developed into a residential and commercial complex with car
parking spaces and the construction is scheduled to be
completed in the second half of 2010. According to the Real
Estate Ownership Certificate (FEHE#EFE) (Document No.: Yue
Fang Di Zheng Zi. No. (C6561410) registered on 31 October
2008, the Project Company has the right to use the Project Land
for terms expiring on 10 July 2077 and 10 July 2047 for residential
and commercial purposes, respectively.

The Ocean Vast Acquisition constituted a major transaction under
the Listing Rules. The Ocean Vast Acquisition has been approved
by the shareholders of the Company at an extraordinary general
meeting held on 17 July 2009, details of the Ocean Vast
Acquisition is set out in the announcement and circular of the
Company dated 21 May 2009 and 30 June 2009, respectively.

MATERIALDISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Group did not have any material disposal of subsidiaries or
associates during the year ended 30 June 2009.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET
DATE AND FUTURE PLANS FOR
MATERIAL INVESTMENTS

On 11 August 2009, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (as supplemented by the supplemental
agreement dated 20 August 2009) with the Mr. Ho Man Hung
(“Mr. Ho”) pursuant to which the Company conditionally agreed to
acquire for and the Mr. Ho has conditionally agreed to dispose of
the sale shares, being the entire issued capital of Boom Lotus
Holdings Limited (“Boom Lotus”), a company established in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability and is wholly-owned by
Mr. Ho, at a total consideration of HK$590,000,000 (the “Boom
Lotus Acquisition”).
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HEARZHE—BEATHWERB tHWEBUR
FRERAK SR ESFRERA G ERE
#911,878.40F 5 oK » 8 &I 48 7 25 H 75 4936,375.96
$ﬁ*oiimrﬁﬁfﬁguﬁﬁ)‘z%&%ﬁﬁ%»%ﬁ@
F—8OtE BR_E—ZFTF+FTHER -
BE_ZSTENF+AZ+ " HESZEHERESE

(5% BREFEFC6561410)F /R~ » THIER 2 &
EFERAFEFRE_E+t+E+A+H BEERE

RE—_TWHLFLATRH-

BEWEEEBX LR TZEFERS  ES
WEEBEERZETNLFLATEARREANX
@J:%/E'J&%ﬁt}& ERBEBWESEFEY J%ﬁ
R F] /DJU;%—77j-L£F£H +—BERZ
ZNRERNRA=ZTHZRAER

MEBABIREEASIZEXLHE

£

BE_ZTNFAA=ZTHLFE AEEUE
EREANMBEARNBE R ARHESEE-

GSHBEFEERKRKEEXRE

RZZEZAFNAA+—RH AR A)E M G EE
(MAEENRFTEEHZE (B _FTTAFNA=-T
BRMAHZEAMET)  BHEARBERERER
BmArtEERHtRELERRERERARA
Al ([EEDMNEBREIEEXLZBR AR LA
EE2EWNBREA) ZE2HCETRAZHER
7 4B 7 8 %590,000,0007T ([ U ) -



Management Discussion and Analysis

B IR & wm Mo AT

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement, the consideration
for the Boom Lotus Acquisition shall be settled by the Company
by a combination of the issuance and allotment of consideration
shares and cash.

Boom Lotus is an investment holding company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands on 7 December 2007 with limited liability
and is wholly-owned by the Mr. Ho. Subject to the share charge,
the principal asset of Boom Lotus is its 100% equity interest in
Pine Global Investments Limited (“Pine Global”) which in turn
holds 50% equity interest in ZKERIKEMERZE AR AT
(Zhuhai Zhongzhu Real Estate Development Company Ltd.*)
(“Zhuhai Zhongzhu).

Zhuhai Zhongzhu is a sino-foreign joint venture incorporated in the
PRC on 8 November 2005 with limited liability and is owned as to
50% by Pine Global. The major asset of the Zhuhai Zhongzhu is
the project which is consisted of two development properties,
being Property A and Property B.

Property A is situated at West Santaishi Road, North Xiaguang
Road, Zhuhai City, Guangdong Province, the PRC (1 Bl E 8R4 ¥k
WAL =2 A - E¥E4LRA)) and occupies approximately
48,382.70 square meters with a gross floor area of approximately
140,816.93 square meters. The construction of Property A was
completed on 30 March 2009 and Property A has been
developed into a residential and commercial complex with car
parking spaces. As at the date of this report, approximately 60%
of the residential and commercial units under Property A have
been sold to buyers.

Property B is situated at South Renmin West Road, West
Santaishi Road, Zhuhai City, Guangdong Province, the PRC (2
BRAKSTEMARAEE - —=AKAAD and occupies
approximately 57,762.92 square meters with a planned gross
floor area of approximately 171,336.68 square meters. The
construction of Property B is preliminarily scheduled to commence
in October 2009 and be completed in May 2011. Property B wiill
be developed into a residential and commercial complex with car
parking spaces. As mentioned in the foregoing, Property A was
completed and approximately 60% of the residential and
commercial units under Property A have been sold to buyers.
Zhuhai Zhongzhu will retain the proceeds from such sale until the
Completion and it intends to apply them for the development of
Property B.

*  The English name is for identification purpose only
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The Boom Lotus Acquisition constituted a very substantial
acquisition under the Listing Rules. The Boom Lotus Acquisition
has been approved by the shareholders of the Company at an
extraordinary general meeting held on 9 October 2009, details of
the Boom Lotus Acquisition is set out in the announcement and
circular of the Company dated 20 August 2009 and 23
September 2009, respectively.

The Group is principally engaged in (i) the design, supply and
integration of automation and control system; (ii) trading of
automation products and electronic components; (i) property
investment; and (iv) trading of mobile modules. As disclosed in the
section “SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT AND MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATE
COMPANIES” and above, it is the intention of the Company to
hold the project for property development and investment in
Zhuhai. In view of the economic prospect of Zhuhai, the Directors
are of the view that the Ocean Vast Acquisition and the Boom
Lotus Acquisition of the Group are in the interests of the Company
and the Shareholders as a whole. Save as disclosed above, the
Group will continue to seek new business development
opportunities.

Proposed change of name

Pursuant to the resolution of the board of Directors passed on 27
October 2009, the Company announced the proposed change of
the Company’s name to “China Uptown Group Company Limited
(‘PR IR EBABR A E)")". The change of name will be subject
to the passing of a special resolution by the shareholder of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

Proposed change of financial year end date

Pursuant to the resolution of the board of Directors passed on 27
October 2009, the Company announced the change of the
financial year end date from 30 June to 31 December.

Extension and change of terms of convertible
redeemable preference shares

On 23 October 2009, the Company entered into a second
supplemental agreement to the Subscription Agreement to (a)
allow the Preference Shares Conversion Period to be extended
automatically for a period of twelve (12) months with effect from
each expiry date of the Preference Shares Conversion Period
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unless (i) holder of Preference Shares serves a written notice on
the Company notifying its intention of not extending the
Preference Shares Conversion Period for a further twelve (12)
months not later than seven (7) days prior to the expiry date of the
Preference Shares Conversion Period, and (ii) the Company
agrees not to extend the Preference Shares Conversion Period for
a further twelve (12) months upon receiving such notice; and (b)
amend the terms of the Subscription Agreement such that the
Preference Shares become transferable.

In addition, on 23 October 2009, the Company entered into a
supplemental agreement to (a) extend the Preference A Shares
Conversion Period for a further 12 months from the expiry date of
the Preference A Shares Conversion Period such that Preference
A shareholder shall have the right to convert the Preference A
Shares held by it at any time from the date of issue to 10
December 2010; (b) allow the Preference A Shares Conversion
Period to be extended automatically for a period of twelve (12)
months with effect from each expiry date of the Preference A
Shares Conversion Period unless (i) Preference A shareholder
serves a written notice on the Company notifying its intention of
not extending the Preference A Conversion Period for a further
twelve (12) months not later than seven (7) days before the expiry
date of the Preference A Shares Conversion Period, and (i) the
Company agrees not to extend the Preference A Shares
Conversion Period for a further twelve (12) months upon receiving
such notice; and (c) amend the terms of the sale and purchase
agreement such that the Preference A Shares become
transferable.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The details of segment information are set out in Note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

GEARING RATIO

At 30 June 2009, the gearing ratio, expressed as a percentage of
total borrowings over net assets, was about 5.16 (2008: 2.88).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group did not have any significant capital commitments as at
30 June 2009.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

For the year ended 30 June 2009, loss attributable to equity
holders of the Company amounted to approximately
RMB18,547,000 (2008: loss amounted to approximately
RMB122,622,000).

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 30 June 2009, the Group employed a total of approximately
30 full time employees (2008: 40) in Hong Kong and the PRC.
Total staff cost for the year ended 30 June 2009 was
approximately RMB4,828,000 (2008: approximately
RMB17,038,000). The Group’s emolument policies are formulated
on the basis of market trends, future plans and the performance
of individuals, which will be reviewed periodically. Apart from
provident fund scheme and state-managed social welfare
scheme, share options will also be awarded to employees
according to assessment of individuals’ performance.

LITIGATIONS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

During the year, regarding the litigation as to the claims of
approximately RMB9,500,000 raised by the main contractor of
the Shenzhen R & D Centre, the relevant PRC court has made a
judgement in favour of the plaintiff in December 2007. In January
2008, the Company submitted the appeal application to the
relevant PRC court. In May 2008, the Company and the main
contractor entered into a mutual agreement to withdraw from the
litigation by settling a reasonable amount. But in early September
2008, the main contractor applied through the relevant China
court to demand the Company settle the retainer fee due being
RMB550,000 together with penalty. On 10 September 2008, the
Company submitted a counterclaim to the relevant court
counterclaiming the contractor breach of the subject agreement
and is pending decision from the court.

In addition, Techwayson Industrial (Shenzhen) Limited (“TIL”), a
major subsidiary (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the
Company is in the best efforts to negotiate with the Bank of
China, Shenzhen branch to finalise the terms of the debt-
restructuring proposal on the RMB74,734,000 loan of the
Shenzhen subsidiary and the RMB60, 700,000 guaranteed loan.

The Quaypoint Corporation Limited Annual Report 2009
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On 17 July 2008, TIL received a writ of summons issued by the
Intermediate People’s Court, Shenzhen City, the PRC, in respect
of a claim of approximately RMB22,000,000 made by an
independent third party (the “Party”) against TIL, for a guarantee
alleged to have been given by TIL in favour of the Party in
November 2005. TIL has appointed a firm of PRC legal counsel to
assist in the gathering of information and the investigation into the
circumstances giving rise to the claim. The said firm of PRC legal
counsel has defended the questionable claim during the court
hearing late last year and is waiting for the court’s judgment.

On November 2008, TIL (as plaintiff), brought a civil claim (the
“Claim”) against L/ KAIZELREHEHR A A (Shanghai Tian
Ke Hua Power Technology Co., Ltd.* (“Tian Ke Hua’) and fi%
BYRIEIRMD AR AR (X'an Ying Feng Technology Co., Ltd*)
(“Ying Feng”) (both Tian Ke Hua and Ying Feng are defendants)
for, inter alia, breach of contracts in respect of payment of service
fees for certain construction works performed by TIL in the
People’s Republic of China.

On 21 April 2009, a judgment (the “dudgment”) in respect of the
Claim was handed down by E/&WE—FHARZER (First
Intermediate People’s Court of Shanghai*) which was received by
the Company on 7 May 2009. According to the Judgment, TIL
was awarded the outstanding service fees of RMB14,860,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$16,886,000) together with

liquidated damages calculated at the rate of RMB0.001 per day.

Tian Ke Hua filed a notice of appeal (the “Appeal”) against the
Judgment with _E&ME A ARZER (Higher People’s Court of
Shanghai*) within the time limit for appeal stated under the Civil
Procedure Law of the PRC on 14 May 2009. To the knowledge
and information of the directors of the Company, the date of
hearing of the Appeal has not been decided as at the date of this
announcement.

The Company has already made provision to write off the
outstanding service fees which should be paid by Tian Ke Hua
and Ying Feng in the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2008. The Directors expect
that there will not be any immediate financial effect on the Group’s
earnings, net assets and liabilities.

*  The English name is for identification purpose only
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On 20 October 2009, the Company received a writ of summons
from Ying Feng. Ying Feng (as plaintiff) brought a civil claim at 1L
mERATHRZAEREER (Intermediate People’s Court of
Changzhi City, Shanxi Province*) against TIL, (as defendant), for
damages of approximately RMB6,970,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$7,920,000) in respect of product liability arising
from defects in the Programmable Logic Controllers system used
in &3 blast furnace top gas recovery turbine unit project (“TRT”)
(Changgang TRT project*) designed and manufactured by TIL.
Hearing has been scheduled for 25 November 2009.

TIL have decided to defend against the claim and will seek legal
advice in respect of the merits of the claim. The directors of the
Company expect that there will not be any immediate adverse
financial effect on the earnings, net assets and liabilities of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

PROSPECTS

In order to overcome the adverse impact of the financial tsunami,
both the Hong Kong and PRC Governments have launched
various measures to improve the economy. As such, both the
Hong Kong and PRC property markets have achieved a significant
rebound due to the combined positive results of a stimulus fiscal
policy, an eased monetary policy and much improved liquidity.

Whilst the Group will continue to explore business opportunities in
Technology and Trading, we are optimistic about the long-term
development of the property market in PRC which showed steady
growth in terms of sales volume and selling price. Therefore the
Group will focus on how to strategically increase our property
investment in PRC, especially in Zhuhai since with the strong
support of the Zhuhai Municipal Government to strengthen the
environment and infrastructure, such as the bridge that connects
Hong Kong, Zhuhai and Macau (which will start construction by
the end of 2009), the light railway connecting Zhuhai and
Guangzhou etc., it is expected that demand for residential/
commercial property in Zhuhai will continue to grow in the coming
years.

* The English name is for identification purpose only
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Furthermore, the Company proposed to change its name in order
to better reflect the Company’s new emphasis on property
investment and management. Also, in order to strengthen the
management of the recent major acquisitions in Zhuhai and to
explore good investment opportunities, the Company is planning
to establish a wholly-owned project investment company in
Zhuhai and set up a team of property management professionals
to manage our property projects.

With the recent major acquisitions and reorganisation of our
management focus, the Company is confident to achieve its
objective to enhance operation performance and profitability of
the Group and generate satisfactory returns for the shareholders.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend any payment of final dividend for
the year ended 30 June 2009 (2008: Nil).

PUBLICATION ON ANNUAL RESULTS
AND ANNUAL REPORT

The result announcement for the year ended 30 June 2009 is
available for viewing on the website of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited at www.hkexnews.hk and on the website of the
Company at www.quaypoint.com.hk. The annual report will be
despatched to the shareholders of the Company and will also be
available for viewing at the aforesaid websites in due course.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
thank the shareholders for their continuous support to the
Company and extend my appreciation to all management and
staff members for their contribution and dedication throughout the
year.

By Order of the Board
The Quaypoint Corporation Limited

Chen Xian
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 October 2009
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Xian, aged 45, was appointed as an executive Director
and vice-chairman of the Company on 12 October 2007 and
redesignated as Chairman on 30 November 2007 and a director
of several subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chen is one of the
founders of a sizeable property development company in Zhuhai,
the PRC and has been a member of the senior management of a
subsidiary of that company. Mr. Chen was mainly responsible for
the investment and development of real estate projects of such
companies. Before joining those companies, Mr. Chen worked as
a senior member of certain stated-owned companies and the
local authority. He has more than 15 years of extensive experience
in the investment and development of real estate projects. He
holds a Master Degree of Business Administration from the Asia
International Open University (Macau).

Mr. Chen has entered into a service contract with the Company
without a fixed term and is subject to retirement by rotation and
reelection at annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company. Mr.
Chen is entitled to an annual remuneration of HK$520,000, which
is covered by his service contract, with discretionary bonus
payment as determined by the remuneration committee of the
Company based on Mr. Chen’s and the Company’s performance.
The remuneration package of Mr. Chen is determined by
reference to his duties, responsibilities and expected time
commitment to the Company’s affairs.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chen is not connected with any
directors, senior management, substantial shareholders or
controlling shareholders of the Company. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Chen did not hold any directorships in any other listed
companies on the Stock Exchange and any other stock exchange
during the three years preceding the date of this Report. As at the
Latest Practicable Date, save as 3,500,000 options granted to
him, Mr. Chen was not interested or deemed to be interested in
any shares or underlying shares of the Company pursuant to Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”).
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Mr. Lau Sai Chung, aged 53, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 15 September 2006 and re-designated
as executive Director on 30 November 2007. Mr. Lau was also
appointed as chief executive officer of the Company on 30
November 2007. He is currently also a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lau holds a bachelor degree in
Commerce with major in Accounting from the University of
Alberta, Canada and has over 20 years’ experience in the field of
banking and finance. He had been an independent non-executive
director of Dickson Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 313), a
company listed on main board of the Stock Exchange during the
period from August 2003 to March 2006.

Mr. Lau has entered into a service contract with the Company
without a fixed term and is subject to retirement by rotation and
reelection at annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company. Mr.
Lau is entitled to an annual package of HK$650,000, which is
covered by his service contract, with discretionary bonus payment
as determined by the remuneration committee of the Company
based on Mr. Lau’s and Company’s performance. The
remuneration package of Mr. Lau is determined by reference to
his duties, responsibilities and expected time commitment to the
Company’s affairs.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. Lau has personal interest in
148,000 Shares, representing 0.02% of the issued share capital
of the Company and he is also granted 3,352,000 options.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Lau is not connected with any
directors, senior management, substantial shareholders or
controlling shareholders of the Company. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Lau and did not hold any directorships in any other
listed companies on the Stock Exchange and any other stock
exchange during the three years preceding the date of this
Report. As at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. Lau was not
interested or deemed to be interested in any other shares or
underlying shares of the Company pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO.
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Mr. Tsim Sze Hon, aged 36, was appointed as an executive
Director on 1 December 2007. He is currently also a director of
several subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Tsim holds a Bachelor
Degree in Design Study from London Metropolitan University. He
had over 10 years’ experience in toys manufacturing industry. Mr.
Tsim is a director of Weina (BVI) Limited which is the holder of the
460,000,000 Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares issued
by the Company. Mr. Tim is also granted 2,000,000 options. Mr.
Tsim is also the son of Mr. Tsim Wing Kong who is the ultimate
controlling shareholder of Weina (BVI) Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Tsim has entered into a service contract with the Company
without a fixed term and is subject to retirement by rotation and
reelection at annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company. Mr.
Tsim is entitled to an annual remuneration of HK$260,000, which
is covered by his service contract, with discretionary bonus
payment as determined by the remuneration committee of the
Company based on Mr. Tsim’s and Company’s performance. The
remuneration package of Mr. Tsim is determined by reference to
his duties, responsibilities and expected time commitment to the
Company’s affairs.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Tsim is not connected with any
directors, senior management, substantial shareholders or
controlling shareholders of the Company. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Tsim did not hold any positions in the Company or any
of its subsidiaries and did not hold any directorships in any other
listed companies on the Stock Exchange and any other stock
exchange during the three years preceding the date of this
Report. As at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. Tsim was not
interested or deemed to be interested in any other shares or
underlying shares of the Company pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO.
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Mr. Xiong Jianrui, aged 45, was appointed as an executive
Director on 31 December 2008. Mr. Xiong graduated with a
bachelor degree in Information Engineering from Xi Bei Institute of
Telecommunications Engineering in 1983. He is currently a
director of several subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Xiong has
over 25 years experience in automation & control industry, also is
very experienced with investment business environment in
Mainland China and Hong Kong. Mr. Xiong was a non-executive
director of T S Telecom Technologies Limited, a company listed
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 8003) from 2
October 2007 to 28 December 2007. He had been appointed as
an executive director of the Company (formally known as
Techwayson Holdings Limited) since 16 May 2003 and had been
appointed as chairman since 30 March 2004. On 4 November
2005, due to personal commitments, he resigned as an executive
director and chairman of the Company.

Mr. Xiong has entered into a service contract with the Company
without a fixed term and is subject to retirement by rotation and
reelection at annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company. Mr.
Xiong is entitled to an annual remuneration of HK$520,000, which
is covered by his service contract, with discretionary bonus
payment as determined by the remuneration committee of the
Company based on Mr. Xiong’s and the Company’s performance.
The remuneration package of Mr. Xiong is determined by
reference to his duties, responsibilities and expected time
commitment to the Company’s affairs.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Xiong is not connected with any
directors, senior management, substantial shareholders or
controlling shareholders of the Company. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Xiong did not hold any directorships in any other listed
companies on the Stock Exchange and any other stock exchange
during the three years preceding the date of this Report. As at the
Latest Practicable Date, save as 3,500,000 options granted to
him, Mr. Xiong was not interested or deemed to be interested in
any shares or underlying shares of the Company pursuant to Part
XV of the SFO.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Xia Dan, aged 42, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 21 August 2007 and re-designated as an executive
Director on 12 October 2007. Ms. Xia has been re-designated as
a non-executive Director on 31 December 2008. Before Ms. Xia
was appointed as a non-executive Director on 21 August 2007,
she had been a member of the senior management of a sizeable
property development company in Zhuhai, PRC and was
responsible for its project investments analysis. Ms. Xia also
worked for various companies in the PRC and North America and
has over 18 years of extensive experience in strategic planning
and marketing in the fields of construction, financial and foreign
trading industries. Ms. Xia graduated from Shenyang University
with Bachelor of Science in Architecture and holds a Master
Degree of Business Administration from New York Institute of
Technology. She is currently a director of Techwayson Industrial
Limited, which is a subsidiary of the Company.

Ms. Xia has entered into a written service contract with the
Company as a non-executive director of the Company without a
fixed term and is subject to the retirement by rotation and re-
election at annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company. Ms. Xia is entitled
to an annual remuneration of HK$260,000, which is covered by
the services contract, with discretion bonus payment as
determined by the remuneration committee of the Company
based on Ms. Xia’'s and the Company’s performance. The
remuneration package of Ms. Xia is determined by reference to
her duties, responsibilities and expected time commitment to the
Company’s affairs.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, Ms. Xia is the beneficial owner
of Mega Edge International Limited which is a substantial
shareholder of the Company holding 79,500,000 ordinary shares,
representing 13.14% equity interest in the capital of the Company.
Ms Xia is also granted 3,500,000 options. Ms. Xia is deemed to
be interested in 79,500,000 ordinary shares of the Company held
by Mega Edge International Limited under Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, Ms. Xia is not connected with any
directors, senior management, substantial shareholders or
controlling shareholders of the Company. Save as disclosed
above, and did not hold any directorships in any other listed
companies on the Stock Exchange and any other stock exchange
during the three years preceding the date of this Report. As at the
Latest Practicable Date, Ms. Xia was not interested or deemed to
be interested in any other shares or underlying shares of the
Company pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Chong Yiu Chik, aged 69, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 1 March 2008. Mr. Chong is also the
chairman and member of nomination committee and members of
audit committee and remuneration committee of the Company.
Mr. Chong graduated from Wuhan University in China with major
in Politics and Economics. He is currently the director and general
manager of Eliter International Development Limited and he has
over 30 years’ management experience in the field of China and
foreign trades. He is also the vice president of China’s Foreign
Trade Association, Honorary president of Shantou Overseas
Friendship Association, Honorary Chairman of Universal Petrol-
Chemical Development Limited and member of Standing
Committee of Returned Oversea Chinese Association of
Guangdong.

Mr. Chong has not entered into any written services contract with
the Company and is not appointed for a specific term. However,
he is subject to the retirement by rotation and re-election at
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company. Mr. Chong is entitled to an
annual remuneration of HK$180,000 without any bonus payment.
The remuneration of Mr. Chong is not covered by any services
contract. The remuneration package of Mr. Chong is determined
by reference to performance of the Group and of Mr. Chong with
reference to prevailing market conditions.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chong is not connected with any
directors, senior management, substantial shareholders or
controlling shareholders of the Company. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Chong did not hold any positions in the Company or
any of its subsidiaries and did not hold any directorships in any
other listed companies on the Stock Exchange and any other
stock exchange during the three years preceding the date of this
Report. As at the Latest Practicable Date, save as 348,000
options granted to him, Mr. Chong was not interested or deemed
to be interested in any shares or underlying shares of the
Company pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.
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Mr. Poon Lai Yin, Michael, aged 37, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 29 November 2006. Mr.
Poon is also the chairman and member of audit committee and
members of nomination committee and remuneration committee
of the Company. Mr. Poon is a fellow member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of CPA
Australia. He holds a bachelor degree in administrative studies
with York University in Canada and a master degree in practicing
accounting with Monash University in Australia. Mr. Poon worked
for an international accounting firm and was responsible for
providing business advisory and assurance services for some
listed clients. He has over 14 years of experience in financial
reporting, business advisory, auditing, taxation, accounting,
merger and acquisition. Mr. Poon was the chief financial officer,
qualified accountant, company secretary and authorised
representative of Sonavox International Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 8226), which is a company listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange, from March 2002 to June 2008. He is the independent
non-executive director of Sun International Group Limited (Stock
Code: 8029) since September 2008 and he is currently the chief
financial officer and qualified accountant of Enviro Energy
International Holdings Limited (“Enviro”) (formally known as “Sys
Solutions Holdings Limited”) (Stock Code: 8182), both are listed
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange. He previously was the
independent non-executive director of Enviro for the period from
December 2006 to July 2008 and company secretary and
authorized representative of Enviro for the period from July 2008
to October 2008.

Mr. Poon has not entered into any written service agreement with
the Company and is not appointed for a specific term. However,
he is subject to the retirement by rotation and re-election at
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company. Mr. Poon is entitled to an
annual remuneration of HK$180,000 without any bonus payment.
The remuneration of Mr. Poon is not covered by any service
contract. The remuneration package of Mr. Poon is determined
by reference to performance of the Group and of Mr. Poon with
reference to prevailing market conditions.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Poon is not connected with any
directors, senior management, substantial shareholders or
controlling shareholders of the Company. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Poon did not hold any positions in the Company or
any of its subsidiaries and did not hold any directorships in any
other listed companies on the Stock Exchange and any other
stock exchange during the three years preceding the date of this
Report. As at the Latest Practicable Date, save as 200,000
options granted to him, Mr. Poon was not interested or deemed
to be interested in any shares or underlying shares of the
Company pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.
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Mr. Choi Kai Ming, Raymond, aged 60, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 31 December 2008. Mr.
Choi is also the chairman and member of remuneration committee
and members of audit committee and nomination committee of
the Company. Mr. Choi graduated with a bachelor degree in
Production Engineering from The University of Aston in
Birmingham, UK in 1976. In 1979, he was qualified as a member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of England & Wales, and
in 1980 as a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. In the last thirty years he had served Price
Waterhouse, China Light and Power, Guangdong Nuclear Power,
China Everbright Holdings, as well as running his own accounting
practice in Hong Kong. Mr. Choi is currently a qualified accountant
of Tai-l International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1808). Mr. Choi
was previously the company secretary and authorized
representative of Tai-I International Holdings Limited for the period
from November 2006 to April 2008.

Mr. Choi has not entered into any written service contract with the
Company and is not appointed for a specific term. However, he is
subject to the retirement by rotation and re-election at annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the articles
of association of the Company. Mr. Choi is entitied to an annual
remuneration of HK$180,000 without any bonus payment. The
remuneration of Mr. Choi is not covered by any service contract.
The remuneration package of Mr. Choi is determined by reference
to his duties, responsibilities and expected time commitment to
the Company’s affairs.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Choi is not connected with any
directors, senior management, substantial shareholders or
controlling shareholders of the Company. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Choi did not hold any positions in the Company or any
of its subsidiaries and did not hold any directorships in any other
listed companies on the Stock Exchange and any other stock
exchange during the three years preceding the date of this
Report. As at the Latest Practicable Date, save as 348,000
options granted to him, Mr. Choi was not interested or deemed to
be interested in any shares or underlying shares of the Company
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) and the management of the
Company are committed to the maintenance of good corporate
governance practices and procedures.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with the
code provisions and, where applicable, the recommended
practices of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(“Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout
the year ended 30 June 2009, except for the deviation of the
Code Provision A.3.2 and breach of rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rule
which requires that every board of director of a listed company
must include at least three independent non-executive directors.
During the period under review, the Board had only 2 independent
non-executive Directors since 28 November 2008 as Mr. Ng
Kwok Chu Winfield has retired on 28 November 2008 and did not
offer himself for re-election as independent non-executive
Director. But on 31 December 2008, the Company has appointed
a new independent non-executive Director, therefore with effect
from 31 December 2008, the Company has complied the Code
Provision A.3.2 and the rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors of the Company confirm that all Directors
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code during the year under review.
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COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES

The Board is collectively responsible for the oversight of the
management of the business and affairs of the Group with the
objective of enhancing shareholders value. As at 30 June 2009,
the Board consists of eight Directors, comprising four executive
Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Xian (Chairman)

Mr. LAU Sai Chung (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. TSIM Sze Hon

Mr. XIONG Jianrui (appointed on 31 December 2008)

Non-executive Director

Ms. XIA Dan (re-designated as non-executive Directors on
31 December 2008)
Mr. Gerard Joseph McMahon (retired on 28 November 2008)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHONG Yiu Chik

Mr. POON Lai Yin, Michael

Mr. CHOI Kai Ming, Raymond (appointed on 31 December 2008)
Mr. NG Kwok Chu Winfield (retired on 28 November 2008)

The directors’ biographical information are set out on pages 18 to
25 of this Annual Report. All executive Directors have given
sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Group. Each
executive Director has sufficient experience to hold the position so
as to carry out his duties effectively and efficiently. There is no
relationship among the members of the Board of Directors.

The Board has delegated the Executive Directors with authority
and responsibility by handling the management functions and
operations of the day-to-day business of the Company, while
reserving certain key matters for the approval by the Board. The
types of decisions to be taken by the Board include annual and
interim period financial reporting and control, equity fund raising,
declaration of interim dividend and making recommendation of
final dividend or other distributions, notifiable transactions under
Chapters 14 and 14A of the Listing Rules and making
recommendation for capital reorganization or scheme
arrangement of the Company.
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During the year under review, four regular meetings of the Board
were held with at least fourteen days’ notices given to all Directors
and are provided with relevant information to make informed
decisions. The Board and each Director have separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management. A

P oS
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Director who considers a need for independent professional EEe@3%  HAB KB f@EREMEELER o
advice in order to perform his duties as a Director may convene,
or request the secretary of the Company to convene, a meeting of
the Board to approve the seeking of independent legal or other
professional advice.
The attendance of Directors at the Board Meetingsandthe Board EEe@REE=EZEe@XIKENAFHEEZ €%
Committees Meetings is set out in the table below: HEIBEREINRTE
Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
HEZS® SaBEzEH
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee
EEHa EET EHXZEET FWESE REESE
Executive Directors BITESE
Mr. CHEN Xian BRE & 4/4 - - -
Mr. LAU Sai Chung B LA 4/4 — — —
Mr. TSIM Sze Hon EFEEEE 4/4 — — —
Mr. XIONG Jianrui AR B 3 5 A&
(appointed on 31 December 2008) (RZZEENF+ZA=+—HEZT) 2/2 — - -
Non-executive Director FHITEE
Mr. Gerard J. MCMAHON EREHEE
(retired on 28 November 2008) (R=ZFZN\F+—A=Z+N\BRE) 11 11 - -
Ms. XIA Dan (re-designated as non-executive XIA Dan#
Directors on 31 December 2008) (R—ZEENF+_A=+—8#HATA
FEMITESE) 4/4 — - —
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAERITES
Mr. NG Kwok Chu, Winfield REREE
(retired on 28 November 2008) (E/LEE)\@ +—AZ+NHRME) 11 11 11 11
Mr. POON Lai Yin, Michael Bkt 4/4 2/2 2/2 2/2
Mr. CHONG Yiu Chik H R854 4/4 2/2 2/2 2/2
Mr. CHOI Kai Ming, Raymond ERUER A
(appointed on 31 December 2008) (R=ZZZEN\F+_A=+—HEZMT) 2/2 11 - —
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Director are
segregated and are held by Mr. CHEN Xian and Mr. LAU Sai
Chung respectively. The Chairman is responsible for the Group’s
strategic planning and the management of the operations of the
Board, while the Chief Executive Director takes the lead in the
Group’s operations and business development. There is a clear
division of responsibilities between the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company which provides a balance of
power and authority.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a
specific term, subject to re-election, which will run until the
conclusion of the third annual general meeting from the date of
their last re-election and in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association. One of the independent non-executive
Directors has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise as required under Rule
3.10 of the Listing Rules. The Company has received the annual
confirmation of independence from each of the independent non-
executive Directors as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The existing Nomination Committee has the following three
members:

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. CHONG Yiu Chik (Chairman)

Mr. POON Lai Yin, Michael

Mr. CHOI Kai Ming, Raymond (appointed on 31 December 2008)
Mr. NG Kwok Chu, Winfield (retired on 28 November 2008)

The Nomination Committee has adopted a written nomination
procedure specifying the process and criteria for the selection and
recommendation of candidates for directorship of the Company.

ERFRATHER
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The functions of the nomination committee are reviewing and
supervising the structure, size and composition of the Board,
identifying qualified individuals to become members of the Board,
assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors.

Potential new Directors are identified and submitted to the
Nomination Committee for approval. The nomination of Directors
should be taken into consideration of the candidate’s qualification,
ability and potential contribution to the Company. A candidate to
be appointed as independent non-executive Director must also
satisfy the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

During the year under review, there were changes of the Directors
and four meetings were held to consider the changes of the
Directors. Every newly appointed Directors during the year had
going through the selection process stated as above and the re-
election of the Directors retired in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established Remuneration Committee with the
following written terms of reference in compliance with the code
provision of the code. The Remuneration Committee has 3
members:

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. CHOI Kai Ming, Raymond (appointed on 31 December 2008)
(Chairman)

Mr. POON Lai Yin, Michael

Mr. CHONG Yiu Chik

Mr. NG Kwok Chu, Winfield (retired on 28 November 2008)

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for the remuneration of Directors and senior
management, and reviewing the specific remuneration packages
of all executive Directors and senior management by reference to
the corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board from
time to time.

Details of the remuneration of Directors are set out on Note 17 to
the condensed consolidated financial statements. During the year
under review, no Director was involved in deciding his own
remuneration.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with the code provisions of the code.
As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee of the Company
consists of the following members:

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. POON Lai Yin, Michael (Chairman)

Mr. CHONG Yiu Chik

Mr. CHOI Kai Ming, Raymond (appointed on 31 December 2008)
Mr. NG Kwok Chu, Winfield (retired on 28 November 2008)

The chief responsibilities of the audit committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditors and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditors, and any questions of resignation or dismissal of
such auditors; reviewing the quarterly, interim and annual reports
and accounts of the Group; and supervising the financial reporting
process and effectiveness of internal control system of the Group.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee reviewed and
made recommendation for the Board’s approval of the draft
audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30
June 2009 and the draft unaudited interim financial statements of
the Group for the six months ended 31 December 2008,
discussed the accounting policies and practices which may affect
the Group with the management and the Company’s auditors,
made recommendation on the re-appointment of external auditors
for the approval of the shareholders in the annual general meeting
of the Company, reviewed the fees charged by the external
auditors; and reviewed the internal control system of the Group.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Grant Thornton, the Group’s auditor, was appointed as the
Company’s external auditors by the Shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 30 November 2007 until
the next annual general meeting but they resigned on 12 August
2008. SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited was appointed to fill the
vacancy of Grant Thornton on 8 September 2008.

The audit works of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2009
were performed by SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited.

The total fee paid/payable in respect of the statutory audit and
non-audit services provide by external auditors is set out in the
following table:

% BB BN &

RARAE-_ZFTZTLF+-A=ZTHETZER
BFEAGL AEEZTIERBMHYE STE1T
(MEEDERRERARR ZINEZEE - T8
ETERRBEFRERLE BER_ZFTZTNFNA
T_HABRERARBAZEREM R_TZNEFN
ANB - EXxPM(EB)EAMEBMBERA

BEZERARRZZEENAEMG SRR

AEEBRE_ZTZENFAAA=ZTHLEFEZEZHE
THEAEXTN(ER)GMEBMARIAE
# -

SNBZ BB T IR A E R B EERBRE 2B
Nz BREREINTX:

Fee paid/payable

Services rendered FriR AR 5 for the year ended 30 June
Bt EfER
BEAA=1THILLEE
2009 2008
—EBEAE —EFENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHTT T
Audit services % EUR S
— SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited — EXFRA(BEB)GME
BRI AER A A 735 680
Non-audit services IEZER T
— SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited Special — B (FE)SHME
engagement BHRBERARFELZE 600 -
— Grant Thornton Special engagement — et ETZE 20 420
Total fee paid/payable for the year FREN ERZERBE 1,355 1,100
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for each financial period which
gives a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of
the results and cash flows for that period. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2009, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies
and applied them consistently, made judgments and estimates
that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis. The
statement by the auditors of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
page 46 of the annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has the overall responsibility for maintaining a sound
and effective system of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness, particularly in respect of the controls on financial,
operational, compliance and risk management, to achieve the
Company’s business strategies and the Group’s business
operations. The Directors have adopted an internal control policy
for the Group. The internal control is fundamental to the
successful operation and day-to-day running of a business and its
assists the Company in achieving its business objectives. The
policy has been developed with a primary objective of providing
general guidance and recommendations on a basic framework of
internal control and risk management. The Company’s internal
control system comprises a well established organizational
structure and policies and standards. Procedures have been
designed to safeguard assets against unauthorized use or
disposition, to ensure maintenance of proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or
for publication, and to ensure compliance with applicable laws
and regulations. The purpose of the Company’s internal control is
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate
risks or failure in operational systems and achievement of the
Company’s objective.
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The Directors have conducted an annual review of the
effectiveness of the system or internal control of the Group,
covering all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board makes its endeavour to maintain an ongoing and
transparent communication with all shareholders and, in particular,
use general meetings to communicate with shareholders and
encourage their participation. The Company also uses various
other means of communication with its shareholders, such as
publication of annual and interim reports, announcements,
circulars and additional information on the Group’s business
activities and development on the Company’s website:
www.quaypoint.com.hk.
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Report of Directors
EEQWE

The directors of the Company are pleased to present their report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 30 June 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
engaged in (i) the design, supply and integration of automation
and control system; (ii) trading of automation products and
electronic components; (i) property investment; and (iv) trading of
mobile modules. Details of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
Note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by business segments and
geographical segments for the year ended 30 June 2009 is set
out in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s results for the year ended 30 June 2009 and the
state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the annual
report on pages 47 to 143. The directors of the Company do not
recommend the payment of any dividend in respect of the year
ended 30 June 2009.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities, and
minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements is
set out on page 4 of this annual report. This summary does not
form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND
PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment,
investment properties and prepaid lease payments of the Group
during the year are set out in Notes 18 to 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE
OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s ordinary share capital
and share options are set out in Notes 30 and 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE
PREFERENCE SHARES

Details of the redeemable convertible preference shares issued by
the Company during the year are set out in Note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares of
the Company on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

REPURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION
OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 30 June 2009, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s shares.

RESERVES

Details of movement in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 52 of the annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at the balance sheet date, the Company did not have any
reserves available for cash/in specie dividend distribution to
shareholders of the Company.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers during the year
is as follows:

FEERRMER

RAFER AEETEEFPEEHERLHE
BEERBREFBOT

Percentage of the Group’s total

IEXEEEET L
Sales Purchases
SHEHS HisE
The largest customer BAEF 33.62% —
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFP L5 85.09% —
The largest supplier =AHEER — 91.40%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate K E R B ET — 96.15%

At no time during the year, none of the Directors, their associates
or any shareholders of the Company (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, owe more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the major customers
and suppliers disclosed above.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year are:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Xian (Chairman)

Mr. LAU Sai Chung (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. TSIM Sze Hon

Mr. XIONG Jianrui (appointed on 31 December 2008)

Non-executive Director

Ms. XIA Dan (re-designated as non-executive Directors on
31 December 2008)
Mr. Gerard Joseph McMahon (retired on 28 November 2008)
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHONG Yiu Chik

Mr. POON Lai Yin, Michael

Mr. CHOI Kai Ming, Raymond (appointed on 31 December 2008)
Mr. NG Kwok Chu Winfield (retired on 28 November 2008)

The directors’ biographical information are set out on pages 18 to
25 of this Annual Report. All executive Directors have given
sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Group. Each
executive Director has sufficient experience to hold the position so
as to carry out his duties effectively and efficiently. There is no
relationship among the members of the Board of Directors.

In accordance with Articles 87(1), Mr. CHEN Xian and Ms. XIA
Dan will retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, being eligible, offers themselves for re-election at
the AGM.

In accordance with Article 86(3), Mr. XIONG Jianrui, Mr. CHOI Kai
Ming, Raymond who were appointed after the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 28 November 2008 shall hold
office until the forthcoming annual general meeting and shall be
eligible for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out
on pages 18 and 25 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company without fixed. Each of the executive
Directors may receive a discretionary bonus, the amount of which
will be determined by the Board of Directors as its absolute
discretion having regard to the operation result of the Company.

No Director of the Company proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director of the Company had a significant beneficial interest,
either direct or indirect, in any contract of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any its
subsidiaries was a party at any time during the year ended 30
June 2009.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. CHONG Yiu Chik, Mr. POON Lai
Yin, Michael and Mr. CHOI Kai Ming, Raymond, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to the Listing Rules
and the Company considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors of the Company and
the highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in Note 17 to
the consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET
DATE

Details of the events after the balance sheet date are set out in
the section “EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE AND
FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS” above and
Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Details of the emolument policies of the Company are set out in
the section “EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES”
above.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITION IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 30 June 2009, the interests and short positions of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of the Part XV of the
SFO) (1) which are required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (2)
which are required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (3) which are
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies (“Model Code”) to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

FABESERERGHERRRE

RZEZNFANAZTH ARAIZEEHETE
TRABRARBREMRE AR (TEREFHFLBH
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%&%fmm%%W%ﬁﬁW§£ﬁm% & KA
B HQBREBE LM AN ESETESFRINIZE
SPA(MZEST 8 ) M BB MARQ 7 KA 2 #
w KRBT

Number of
Number of Shares held  options held
FRSERRRIE
iR RnEE Eof =] Approximate
Personal Corporate Personal percentage of
Name of Director Interest Interest Interest Total shareholding
EENa PN 52 TG PN 52 “y  HREBOEHI
Ms. XIA Dan (note) XIA Danzz & (#17%) — 79,500,000 — 79,500,000 18.52
Mr. LAU Sai Chung Rt B s 148,000 — - 148,000 0.03
Mr. Gerard Joseph McMAHON 2 PR A A
(retired on 28 November 2008) (R—ZTZTN\F
+—A=+N8
BAE) 500,000 — 1,000,000 1,500,000 0.35
Note: Ms. Xia Dan (“Ms. Xia”) is taken to be interested in 79,500,000 P& : Xia DanZ & ([ XiaZZ & |) # % /& # £ Mega Edge

shares held by Mega Edge International Limited which is 100%
owned by Ms. Xia. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Xia is deemed to
have interest of the Shares held by Mega Edge International
Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2009, none of the
Directors, chief executive of the Company nor their associates
had any interest or short position in shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations which
were recorded in the register required to be kept under 352 of the
SFO or notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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Substantial Shareholders

As at 30 June 2009, so far as was known to the Directors, the
following persons (other than the Directors or the chief executive
of the Company) has interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of division 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register of substantial

FERRWERDR

shareholder required to be kept by the Company under section

BT XX T EIN
EVEEXZAEMEMAL (RARBEFTHEIR
THRABHBEEFE BN RALI) RARB RN
HEEBODPHEEREIARMBREESZLYPE
R FEXVEFE2 M3 B AR 1B 78 5 M B | 15 0] 55336
Rz B EBRRMARAWE -

R=TEAFAA=TA &

336 of the SFO.
(i) Long position in ordinary shares (i) K 5] Z 8 AR
Percentage
Capacity and Number of shares of total
Substantial Shareholder nature of interest held issued shares
HE#TRIERTZ
=5 S5, e FRiF AR B E L EO= 0174
Mega Edge International Limited (note) Registered Shareholder 79,500,000 18.52%
Mega Edge International Limited (/:#) AR R
Mr. Chak Joaguim Emilio Kin Man Registered Shareholder 96,824,000 22.56%

Chak Joaquim Emilio Kin Mant 4

Note:

FEMARR

Mega Edge International Limited, which is 100% owned by

Ms. Xia Dan, non-executive Director of the Company. By
virtue of the SFO, Ms. Xia is deemed to have interest of
Shares held by Mega Edge International Limited.

(i) Long position in underlying shares

(i)

MisE : AR FZIEHITE EXia Dan - B Mega
Edge International Limited # 55 100% & 5 12
- RIEFHFRBAEKG - Xak T #
1% A% 55 Mega Edge International Limited 2

BRI -

R AR R < B

Approximate
percentage of total

Capacity and Number of issued ordinary
Name nature of interest underlying shares shares
HERTRBEEZ
&% 513 HERSE PRl 8 E BaE3EE
Weina (BVI) Limited (“Weina”) (note 7 & 2) Beneficial owner 460,000,000 107.18%
Weina (BVI) Limited ( 281 ) (Hfzt1&2) EmERE
Weina Group Limited (“Weina Group”) (note 3) Interest of a controlled corporation 460,000,000 107.18%
EHEBERAR ( [KBER] ) (H:i73) R AR s
Mr. Tsim Wing Kong (“Mr. Tsim”) (note 3) Interest of a controlled corporation 460,000,000 107.18%

EEYeEE (['EERE]) (M#3)

FEHIARZ i

LHEEERLAE —TTNFER
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Notes:

The Company has entered into a subscription and option
agreement on 26 May 2006 with Weina and through such
agreement and the exercise of the option by the Company,
Weina is interested in 350,000,000 convertible redeemable
preference shares and has the right to convert the
aforesaid shares into 350,000,000 ordinary shares (based
on its initial conversion price). The Company and Weina
has on 2 June 2009 entered into a supplemental agreement
to agree to extend the conversion period for a further 12
months from the expiry date of the conversion period such
that Weina shall have the right to convert the convertible
redeemable preference shares held by it at any time from
the date of issue to 15 June 2010 and 7 June 2011 (the
dates being 10 business days before the fourth anniversary
of the date of initial issue of the 250,000,000 and the
100,000,000 convertible redeemable preference shares.

The Company has entered into a sale and purchase
agreement on 17 November 2006 with Weina Holdings
Limited and through such agreement, Weina (as designated
by Weina Holdings Limited) is interested in 110,000,000
convertible redeemable preference A Shares and has the
right to convert the aforesaid shares into 110,000,000
ordinary shares (based on its initial conversion price).

Weina Group owns entire issued capital of Weina and is
therefore deemed to have interests in the underlying shares
of the Company in which Weina is interested. Mr. Tsim is
deemed to be interested in the underlying shares of the
Company by virtue of his controlling interest in Weina
Group. Mr. Tsim is the father of Mr. Tsim Sze Hon, the
Director of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, no person had registered interest

in the

share capital of the Company that was required to be

disclosed under Division 2 and 3 of the Part XV of the SFO

and the Listing Rules.

Save for the shareholders as disclosed herein, the Directors

more

are not aware of any persons, who, as at 30 June 2009,
were entitled to exercise or control the exercise of 5% or

of the voting power at the general meeting of the

Company and were also, a practicable matter, able to direct

or influence the management of the Company.
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AREEEERRNERREREBZERN
¥ % /350,000,000 @ & AR 0 o AN A &)
WeinaR ZEZNFRAZB (TR )IEE
HAmZE REAERBgEER s BER
TZEA - BHBREBERE  WenaB R B
KR EREERETZARE T —
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A new share option scheme was adopted on 20 January 2003
(“Scheme”). The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentive
and to recognise the contribution of the eligible participants,
including directors and employees of the Group, to the growth of
the Group and to provide flexibility to the Group in terms of
remunerating the participants.

Particulars of the movement of the options held by each of the
Directors, the employees of the Company in aggregate granted
under the Scheme during the six months period ended 30 June
2009, were as follows:

R i #E 5T &

ARARMHN —_TZE=F-A_+HBBZER
BatE (58l ) - st BlEERAER2EE (8
RAKEEERER ) RERINALARERALE
ENERAENEBTUAEE  BAEEERE
SEEFHREAEML-

BE-TTAFAAS+ALAEARN BER
AR BIEL FAAAEERES 2 BREED
EERIIMT :

Number of share options
g 0]
Exercise Granted Exercised  Lapsed
price per Heldat during the during the during Held at
Category of participants Date of grant  Exercise period share 1 July 2008 year year theyear 30 June 2009
Sk R-FEAE REER REER REER RIFTAE
FEA Rt EH T8 fi#E tRA—-B#%F B fif# EX¥ ~A=+BRF
HK$
B
Directors retired during the period
RERBEZESE
Mr. Gerard Joseph McMahon (Note) 6.7.2007 6.7.2007-5.7.2008 1.14 1,500,000 — — 1,500,000 -
BIEBELE (HF) 31.1.2008 31.1.2008-30.1.2011 0.74 1,500,000 — 500,000 - 1,000,000
Employees 6.7.2007 6.7.2007-5.7.2008 1.14 1,048,000 — — 1,048,000 -
EE
Total 4,048,000 - 500,000 2,548,000 1,000,000
At

a7

Note: Mr. Gerard Joseph McMahon, who was a non-executive director
of the Company, retired on 28 November 2008 and did not offer
himself for re-election as director but continued to be employed by
the Company as an external consultant for the Group. The share
options granted to Mr. Gerard Joseph McMahon on 31 January
2008 have therefore not been cancelled.

On 6 July 2007, the Company granted 11,228,000 share options
(all at subscription price of HK$1.14 per share) to Directors and
selected employees of the Company and its affiliates. These share
options were lapsed on 6 July 2008.

et : ZERBELE SREARFZBIFNTES
RZZEENF+—A=Z+N\BRELEELHEE
BEIRESENELASE ZER - XHB
EERZENF-A=+—BRE2ERE
ARG

RZEBEZLFEANH AQFB&®T11,228,000
BRE(BRITEEAE1148 L) TAR G MEH
BRARIZESERAERZEL - WEREERZ
EENFLANBELRK -

LHEEERLAE —TTNFER
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In addition, on 31 January 2008, the Company granted 1,500,000
share options to Mr. Gerard Joseph McMahon at a subscription
price of HK$0.74.

The total number of outstanding share options under the Scheme
as at 30 June 2009 was 1,000,000.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE COMPANY’S
SECURITIES

Other than as disclosed under the sections “Share Option
Scheme” and “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests or Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares or Debentures” above,
at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executives of the
Company or their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) to have any right to subscribe for securities of the Company
or any of its associated corporations as defined in the SFO or to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

No Director or the management shareholders of the Company
and their respective associates (as defined under the Listing
Rules) had interests in a business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group, as defined in the Listing Rules, during the year and up to
the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Company has
complied throughout the year ended 30 June 2009 with the Code
of Best Practice (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules, save as the deviations disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report as set out in pages 26 to 34.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge or its Directors as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float as
required under the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with the requirements as set out in the
Listing Rules for the purposes of reviewing and supervising the
financial reporting process and internal controls of the Group. The
audit committee currently comprises Mr. POON Lai Yin, Michael
(Chairman), Mr. CHONG Yiu Chik and Mr. CHOI Kai Ming,
Raymond. The audit committee has reviewed and discussed with
the management and the external auditors financial reporting
matters including the annual results for the year ended 30 June
2009.

AUDITORS

Grant Thornton was auditors of the Company for the year ended
30 June 2007 and resigned as auditors of the Company on 12
August 2008.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited (“SHINEWING”) was appointed as
auditors of the Company on 8 September 2008 and the
consolidated financial statements for the two years ended 30
June 2008 and 2009 was audited by SHINEWING. A resolution
for the re-appointment of SHINEWING as auditors of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

On Behalf of the Board

CHEN Xian
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 October 2009
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SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
16/F., United Centre

faikPAa

Shine‘ZOan

95 Queensway, Hong Kong

TO THE MEMBERS OF
THE QUAYPOINT CORPORATION LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of The Quaypoint Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 47 to 143, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet
as at 30 June 2009, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Except for the limitation in
the scope of our work as explained below, we conducted our
audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as
to whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

However, because of the matters described in the basis for
disclaimer of opinion paragraphs, we were not able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an
audit opinion.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Fundamental uncertainties relating to the going
concern basis

As explained in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements,
which indicates that the Group incurred a consolidated loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company of approximately
RMB18,547,000 for the year ended 30 June 2009 and had a
consolidated net current liabilities of approximately
RMB182,293,000 as at 30 June 2009, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, the
validity of which is dependent on the positive cash flows expected
to be generated from the Group’s future operations, successful
outcome of the Group’s current negotiations with its bank
creditors and obtain new working capital in order for the Group to
meet its financial obligation as they fall due and to finance its
future working capital and financial requirements.

The consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments that would result from a failure to obtain such
support and working capital. We consider that appropriate
disclosures have been made. However, the uncertainty
surrounding the outcome of these negotiations raises significant
doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
(Continued)

Fundamental uncertainties relating to the going
concern basis (Continued)

Should the Group be not able to continue its business as a going
concern, adjustments would be necessary to reclassify all non-
current assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities, write
down the value of assets to their recoverable amounts and to
provide for further liabilities which may arise. The consolidated
financial statements have not incorporated any of these
adjustments.

Disclaimer of opinion: disclaimer on view given
by the consolidated financial statements

Because of the significance of the matters described in the basis
for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we do not express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements as to whether they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30 June
2009 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards. In all other respects, in our opinion, the consolidated
financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ip Yu Chak

Practising Certificate Number: P04798

Hong Kong
27 October 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement

AR e W m R

For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNhFANA=ZTHLEEE

2009 2008
—EFTNE —ETNFE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M 3 ARETT AREF T
Turnover 2 10 287,780 152,826
Cost of sales & AR (274,808) (129,115)
Gross profit EH 12,972 23,711
Other operating income Hip & EW A 10 8,267 977
Selling and distribution costs & koK (471) (4,096)
Administrative expenses THEA (15,101) (32,563)
Bad debts directly written off HEFHZIER = (4,871)
Change in fair value of KEMELARE
investment properties k) 19 (8,240) 10,467
Impairment loss recognised FEZRBERSE
in respect of inventories - (2,124)
Impairment loss recognised ZSREKERZ
in respect of trade receivables LEE B 23 (413) (21,588)
Provision for claims RIERE 28 = (60,700)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary M B M E QA
and associates 2 EE 33 = (9,349)
Finance costs B & B A 12 (15,561) (12,219)
Loss before taxation KRFHaiEsiE (18,547) (112,355)
Income tax expense NRES ) 13 - (267)
Loss for the year FEEE 14 (18,547) (112,622
Attributable to: B 2%
Equity holders of the Company NN E R RR (18,547) (112,622)
Minority interests D ERR R = —
(18,547) (112,622)
Loss per share BREE
RMBAR% RMBA R
Basic BN 15 4.33 centsflll 26.41 centsfll
Diluted iy 15 N/AFRER N/ATR i FB
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

2 AR S =
mEEERER
At 30 June 2009
R-FEAFAA=TA

2009 2008
BT AE —EENEFE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M5 ARETT AREF T
Non-current assets EFRHEE
Property, plant and equipment M MR N ERE 18 19,858 19,270
Investment properties B 19 167,765 175,768
Prepaid lease payments HEENNFIE 20 17,675 17,986
Interests in associates Y AN Dl X 21 = -
Available-for-sale investments HBEEHEEKRE 22 - —
205,298 213,024
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5K HE AR 23 14,887 38,854
Prepaid lease payments EEE 20 397 391
Held-to-maturity investments BAEZREHAKE 24 - —
Financial assets at fair value BEEEN R
through profit or loss AREVBEE 25 565 420
Bank balances and cash RITRREET 26
— pledged — B2 12,584 12,289
— unpledged — R 13,289 14,422
41,722 66,376
Current liabilities =R
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMERR 27 55,837 57,512
Provision for claims RERE 28 60,700 65,941
Bank borrowings — repayable BITER —R—FR
within one year BE 29 107,478 112,552
224,015 236,005
Net current liabilities RHBEBEFE (182,293) (169,629
23,005 43,395
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

AR EEREXR

At 30 June 2009
R-ZZEZAFRA=TH

2009 2008
—ETLE —EENF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARSBTT ARBTF T
Capital and reserves ARG E
Ordinary share capital L IR AR AR 30 44,031 43,087
Convertible redeemable Al #E 4% A] fE [0
preference shares 18 55 iR A% A< 31 184,653 184,653
Reserves = (216,958) (197,805)
Equity attributable to equity holders RRRERBRE
of the Company (GRS 11,726 30,835
Minority interests DERER - -
Total equity HnEeE 11,726 30,835
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank borrowings — due after one year RITER — —F1&
F 8 29 11,279 12,560
23,005 43,395

The consolidated financial statements on pages 47 to 143 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
27 October 2009 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Chen Xian

Mr. Lau Sai Chung
2t B e A

Chief Executive Officer

7T AR #L

FATENRBAZHEAMBRENR_ZFZEALF T A
“tEREEEEHEREENE XA TIE
ERREE:
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

2 AL HEE L £24
FMeEnEER

For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNhFANA=ZTHLEEE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RATRBHAAEE
Convertible
Ordinary redeemable Share Exchange
share Share  preference Capital options tr General A d Minority
capital premium shares  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve losses Total interests Total
HER
TiER THEE [ {334 INERE
BF RERE BERRE EXHE fE RERE —REE RithsiE a8 L34 @
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
N AR% AR% AR% AR% AR% AR% AR% AR% AR% AR%
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr i
(Note (@) (Note (b))
(Ft () (Ft (o))
At 1 July 2007 R-ZEZ+FELF—R 37,100 7,160 184,653 13,841 - (1,546) 5,309 (129,398) 117,119 - 117,119
Exchange difference arising on translation 1A & g SN E K RFH =
of financial statements of foreign ZHBBREMEEN
operations and net expenses directly ERZSE
recognised in equity - - - - - (3,368) - - (3,368) - (3,368)
Reserve realised upon disposal of G 1IN
a subsidliary and associates BRlink - - - - - (67) - - (67) - (67)
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - - - - (112,600 (112,622) - (11262
Total recognised expenses for the year REECRIARTEE - - - - - 67) - (112,622) (112,689 — (112,689
Recognition of equity-settled share based ¥ : bA i i 4 & 2 i {3 7/ =0
payments (Note 34) [ (K #34) - - - - 2,913 - - - 2,913 - 2,913
Issue of shares BIRH
— upon placement of shares - FRERH 6,127 12,254 - - - - - - 18,381 - 18,381
— exercise of share options — T ERE 760 9,721 - - (1,819 - - - 8,662 - 8,662
— transaction costs attributable to the - RERDZRIHE
issue of shares - (183) - - - - - - (183) - (183)
At 30 June 2008 RZZENFRA=+H 43,987 28,952 184,653 13,841 1,094 (4,981) 5,309 (242,020) 30,835 - 30,835
Exchange difference arising on translation A& BN ER R IEH % 2
of financial statements of foreign BRBRRAEED
operations and net expenses directly ERZE
recognised in equity - - - - - (886) - - (886) - (886)
Loss for the year and total recognised KEEBEERAFECHR
expenses for the year X @8 - - - - - - - (18,547)  (18,547) - (18547)
Transfer to reserve for value of share KMz BRERE
options lapsed BEEE - - - - (550) - - 550 - - -
Issue of shares upon exercise of share TEBRENRE
options 2k 44 462 - - (182) - - - 324 - 324
At 30 June 2009 RZZTAFAA=+H 44,031 29,414 184,653 13,841 362 (5,867) 5,309 (260,017) 11,726 - 11,726
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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For the year ended 30 June 2009

HE—

Notes:

@)

ZENFRA=THILFE

The capital reserve represents the effect of the reorganisation of
the Group through which the Company become the holding
company of all group companies comprising the Group and
capitalisation of shareholders’ loans by a subsidiary.

As stipulated by regulations in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”), two PRC subsidiaries are required to appropriate 10% of
the after-tax profit (after offsetting prior year losses) to a general
reserve fund until the balance of the fund reaches 50% of its
registered capital and thereafter any further appropriation is
optional. The general reserve fund can be utilised to offset prior
year losses, or for conversion into registered capital on the
condition that the general reserve fund shall be maintained at a
minimum of 25% of the registered capital after such utilisation.

GEE

EARBERAEEREMA (KARRAMMKAE
KAKBEZRBEEBERRZERRR) R —H
MEBARZABERERERMCMELEZZE -

BAREARAME ((HRE])ERRE WEBERA
MEBLARERERUE RN (KEHEBEFEZ
R R BEEI0%IIA—RE#E BEERHBES
HFEME AR 250% - fH &2 BFRBATHE S/ -

—REBESITAFEEBEFREZEBR EE
AMEA EFEFELZSERER —REFS
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LHEEERLAE —TTNFER

53



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
SFERERER

For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNhFANA=ZTHLEEE

2009 2008
—ETAE —EENE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
By 3E ARETR ARBFIT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEEH
Loss before taxation % %t Al E5 18 (18,547) (112,355)
Adjustments for: HEIEE :
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments THERIB 2 #H 397 109
Bad debts directly written off EREHEIER = 4,871
Change in fair value of financial assets at fair BBBRARBRANE
value through profit or loss BMBEEE (143) 765
Change in fair value of investment properties KREWERN f@ {E -1 8,240 (10,467)
Depreciation of property, plant and M MBEREEZ
equipment nE 2,021 1,355
Finance costs BhE B AR 15,561 12,219
Impairment loss recognised in respect of ZHRMETZ
trade receivables B E B 413 21,588
Impairment loss recognised in respect of HEmpEUWREZR 2
other receivables REBE 84 1,108
Impairment loss recognised in respect of FEZREER
inventories = 2,124
Interest income SN ON (242) 671)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary and B R
associates AR ZER 33 - 9,349
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant HEWME HWRELEREZ
and equipment BB (m) 405 (56)
Reversal of bad debts directly written off EEFHERER (2,520) -
Reversal of impairment loss recognised FEREBEEE
in respect of inventories (1,193) —
Reversal of impairment loss recognised HEi UM ERER 2 RE
in respect of other receivables EiEEE (442) -
Reversal of impairment loss recognised B S5 EBERER 2
in respect of trade receivables (B B 1B E (1,767) -
Provision for claims REEE - 60,700
Share-based payment LA B 5 1+ 3% - 2,913
Written off of property, plant and equipment ME - BEREEZ
T = 130
Waiver of trade and other payables ERGEEEZEIR
H &~ BR 3X (897) -
Operating cash flows before movements HELBESEHH Y
in working capital EERERE 1,370 (6,318)
Decrease in inventories 7(? 15 & D 1,193 799
Decrease (increase) in trade and B 5 K& H b e B8R 5K
other receivables DR ( ) 26,787 (6,313)
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 REMENERIRD (14,347) (5,201)
Decrease in provision for claims REBRERD (5,241) (5,200)
Cash generated from (used in) operations "EEHZRESR/A () 9,762 (22,233)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EREBBTEH = @
PRC Enterprise Income Tax refunded PEARAMBEMSE
PRETERR - 355
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) REFHZIBREREN
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (i) BEE 9,762 (21,880
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
/\\/ N E/% STZ ;ﬁ: E 2%

For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNhFANA=ZTHLEEE

2009 2008
—EEAE —TENFE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
By &E ARETR ARBFT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEH
Purchase of property, plant and equipment REWE WELEE (3,129) (1,139)
Increase in pledged bank deposits BRG] (234) (190)
Interest received B U A 242 671
Proceeds from sales of property, HEWE KB REME
plant and equipment FrigshiE 137 80
Purchase of investment properties RNEREWE - (23,756)
Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale HEBHEERE
investments - 4,000
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES & EE2HeH$HE (2,984) (20,330)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BLEEE
Repayment of bank borrowings BEER (20,171) (44,843)
Interest paid BRFIA (2,099) (2,088)
New bank borrowings raised e ,%k 14,131 33,751
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares TR EIT 324 27,043
Payment of share issue expenses BhET2ER = (183)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM MEEHZRE (FH)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BHE (7,815) 13,680
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND HeRBF&£%EEH
CASH EQUIVALENTS BLFE (1,037) (28,530)
EFFECT ON FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE ExggzieE
CHANGES 59 (2,655)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RENZBEEREE
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR ZEHER 14,267 45,452
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RELXZBEREE
AT THE END OF THE YEAR %HEH 13,289 14,267
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH HeRBRe2EEEBZ
EQUIVALENTS, represented by, gaath R
Bank balances and cash RERBITET 26 13,289 14,422
Bank overdraft RITEX 29 = (155)
13,289 14,267
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNhFANA=ZTHLEEE

1.

GENERAL

The Quaypoint Corporation Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempt company
with limited liability. The shares of the Company are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the “Corporate Information” section to the Annual Report.

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) established in Hong Kong is Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”). The functional currency of the subsidiaries
established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) is
Renminbi (“RMB”). For the presentation of the consolidated
financial statements, the Group adopted RMB as its
presentation currency.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
Note 40.

The Quaypoint Corporation Limited Annual Report 2009
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNhFANA=ZTHLEEE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

As at 30 June 2009, the Group reported net current
liabilities of approximately RMB182,293,000. The condition
indicates the existence of a material uncertainty which may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern and therefore that it may be unable to
realise its assets and discharge its liability in the normal
course of business. Nevertheless, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group will have
sufficient working capital to meet its financial obligations as
and when they fall due for the next twelve months from 30
June 2009 given that:

(i) the directors of the Company anticipates that the
Group will generate positive cash flows from its future
operations;

(ii) as set out in Note 29, the Group is still in negotiations
with respective banks concerning a restructuring of
the guarantee provision of RMB60,700,000 and a
short-term bank borrowing of RMB74,734,000. The
directors of the Company are of the opinion that
negotiations will be concluded successfully and full
repayment in the short to medium-term will not be
required; and

(i)  if necessary, in order to meet the Group’s funding
requirements the directors of the Company will
consider to raise funds by way of issuing additional
equity and/or debt securities.

Accordingly, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis. Should the
Group be unable to continue to operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to the consolidated
financial statements to write down the value of assets to
their recoverable amounts, to provide for further liabilities
which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and
non-current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities,
respectively. The effect of these adjustments has not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

R-ZZEZAFANAZ+TH AEEZFEFRD
BEL A AR EE182,293,0007T ° 5% Ak it 2% #F
BEERTHAERZTETHAEBUIGE
MR EGEE R ENER B mA
EELEREEERBTHEELSEKBER
FZET - ARREZTHURAEAEE
BERAEEEACRTEREEA (A
TRFENAZTHBEFREKRTZ@EA A
H) T

) ARREFHEAAREGHRKNE
ERELEEMRERE

(i) ORI FE20f T - AEEIRFE A BHIRIT
#t A R #60,700,0007T 2 ER B B E A
N4 NR¥ET4,734,0007T 2 EHAR 1T &
RETEE ARAEZTREBRHAB
EmER TREHEFHRNEBE
EEEN R

iy WFE ARAEFTZEBRLTH
INERER,REBEHFUNEMGAEER

BEgHmK-

At ARREFHRB/EAMBRREA
ENFEREEERE - MAEETRNUR
BREERBELZX BLERRAMBR
RPZEEBEIHEETHREE RAEKE
EZEREMBEREARESAARRBEE
HEEEM O BARBEELAE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ER R R

For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNhFANA=ZTHLEEE

3. APPLICATIONOFNEWANDREVISED 3. FER#H REIE:IERMBRE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HH ([HEMEREER )
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following REE AEECRMAUTELSSFMAE
amendments and interpretations (“new HKFRSs”) issued by ((BEgHmMmAg)EMCEEREER 2
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the BRI ANEZE ((FEAMBRELA ) -
“HKICPA”) which are or have become effective.
Hong Kong Accounting Reclassification of Financial Assets EReHEN(BReE SREENENHIE
Standard (‘HKAS”) 39 & Bl 1) 305 R A B K]
HKFRS 7 (Amendments) EEBIETHE (BFTR)
HK(IFRIC) — Interpretation Embedded Derivatives FE (ARMBEHREREZE RITEER
(‘INT”) 9 and HKAS 39 g)-REEMREEE
(Amendments) S8 305 (BRI A)
HK(FRIC) — INT 12 Senvice Concession Arrangements H7% (B Wﬂ PHERERBZE RBETELH
) — REE12%
HK(IFRIC) — INT 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes G VX BHERERBEE BHERFHE
g) - REBE1R
HK(FRIC) — INT 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined 55 (BRUBRERREE BAQHENE9R -
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding g) - %E aamﬁ AEFRBELR
Requirements and their Interaction B REESEXR

HEHEERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNhFANA=ZTHLEEE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on
how the results and financial position for the current or prior
accounting periods have been prepared and presented.
Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards, amendments or interpretations that have
been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)
HKAS 32 & HKAS 1
(Amendments)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKFRS 1 (Revised)
HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

HKFRS 8
HK(FRIC) — INT 15

HK(FRIC) — INT 16
HK(FRIC) — INT 17

HK(FRIC) — INT 18

Improvements to HKFRSs 2008'
Improvements to HKFRSs 2009?

Presentation of Financial Statements®

Borrowing Cost®

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements*

Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation?

Eligible Hedged Items*

First-time Adoption of HKFRS*

First-time Adoption of HKFRS®

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate®

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations®

Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions®
Business Combinations*

Improving Disclosures about Financial
Instruments®

Operating Segments®

Agreements for the Construction of Real
Estate?®

Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation®

Distribution of Non-cash Assets to
Owners*

Transfers of Assets from Customers’
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2009

B=E

3.

SEEAFAASTALER

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009 except for the amendments to HKFRS 5, effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009, 1 July 2009 and 1 January 2010, as appropriate.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2009.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2010.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October
2008.

7 Effective for transfers of assets from customers received on

or after 1 July 2009.

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the Group’s
accounting for business combination for which the
acquisition dates are on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 July 2009.
HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting treatment for
changes in a Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary.
The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the other new and revised standards, amendments or
interpretations will have no material impact on the results
and the financial position of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
and certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair
values, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The Quaypoint Corporation Limited Annual Report 2009
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNhFANA=ZTHLEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control
is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity
SO as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the
Group’s equity therein. Minority interests in the net
assets consist of the amount of those interests at the
date of the original business combination and the
minority’s share of changes in equity since the date
of the combination. Losses applicable to the minority
in excess of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s
equity are allocated against the interests of the Group
except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation and is able to make an additional
investment to cover the losses.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s balance sheet at cost less any identified
impairment loss.

4. EXTFBUR &)

(a)
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNhFANA=ZTHLEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(©

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor an interest in a joint venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, investments in associates
are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost
as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the
Group’s share of the net assets of the associates,
less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
An additional share of losses is provided for and a
liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of
the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant
associate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings
held for use in the production or for administrative
purposes are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account of their
estimate residual value, using the straight-line
method.
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item) is included in the
consolidated income statement in the year in which
the item is derecognised.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair
values using the fair value model. Gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investment
property are included in profit or loss for the period in
which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the consolidated income statement in the
year in which the item is derecognised.

4. EXTFBUR &)

(d)

M- HeEs k%l @)

ME BERREBERLERATAELF
BERZEETHBSRRELEHN =@
BHEEA REEDERIAELEZ
ER s EE (REEMSHRIEFR
HEEREECZRTE)IREBR
HERZFEARIAGZE RERE -

REYE

REMEDNFAFERRES HE AL
BzME-

&ﬁ%%#%}’ﬂﬁﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁiﬁiﬂi(aﬁﬁﬁ
BEEXH)FE - RERERE &
BEMEAR $TE$§%’*”%£’A$TEﬁ§°
BR